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CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Good norning | adies and gentl enen,
the Board of Zoning Adjustment. Today is Novenber 20,
2024. This public hearing will please cone to order. M
nane is Fred Hill, Chairman of the District of Col unbia
Board of Zoning Adjustment. Joining nme today are Board
Menbers Lorna John, Carl Bl ake, Chrishaun Smth, and
Zoni ng Conmi ssi oner Rob MIler, | believe, and possibly
Dr. Nanere (ph); but |I'mnot sure.

Today's nmeeting and hearing agenda are available to
you in the Ofice of Zoning's website. Please be advised
that the proceeding is being recorded by a court reporter,
and it's also webcast |ive via Wbex and YouTube |ive.

The video webcast will be available on the Ofice of
Zoning's website after today's hearing. Accordingly,
everyone who is listening on Webex or by tel ephone will be
muted during the hearing. Also, please be advised that we
do not take any public testinmony at our decision neeting
sessi on.

| f you're experiencing difficulty accessing Webex or
wi th your telephone call, then please call our OZ hotline
nunber at (202)727-5471 to receive Wbex log-in or call-in
I nstructions.

At the conclusion of the decision neeting session, |
shall, in consultation with the Ofice of Zoning,

determ ne whether a full or summary order may be issued.
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A full order is required when the decision it contains is
adverse to a party, including an affected ANC. A full
order may al so be needed if the Board's decision differs
fromthe Ofice of Planning' s recommendation. Al though
the Board favors the use of summary orders whenever
possi bl e, an applicant may not request the Board to issue
such an order.

I n today's hearing session, everyone who's |istening
on Webex or by telephone call-in wll be nmuted during the
hearing; and only persons who have signed up to
participate or testify will be unnmuted at the appropriate
time.

Pl ease state your name and honme address before
providing oral testinony or your presentation. O al
presentations should be limted to a sunmary of nost
| nportant points. \Wen you're finished speaking, please
mute your audi o so that your m crophone is no |onger
pi cki ng up sound or background noi se.

Al'l persons planning to testify either in favor or in
opposi tion should have signed up in advance. They'll be
called by name to testify. |If this is an appeal, only
parties are allowed to testify. By signing up to testify,
all participants will agree to the oath or affirmation as
requi red by Y 408. 7.

Requests to enter evidence at the tinme of an online
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virtual hearing, such as witten testinony or additional
supporting docunments other than |ive video, which may not
be presented as part of the testinmony, may be all owed
pursuant to Y 103. 13 provided that the persons naking the
request to enter an exhibit explain, A how the proposed
exhibit is relevant; B, the good cause justifies allow ng
the exhibit in the record, including an explanation of why
the requester did not file the exhibit prior to the
hearing pursuant to Y 206; and how t he proposed exhi bit
wi || not unreasonably prejudice any parties.

The order for procedures for special exceptions and
variances are in Y 409. At the conclusion of each case,
an individual who is unable to testify because of
technical issues may file a request for leave to file a
witten version of the planned testinony to the record
wthin 24 hours follow ng the conclusion of public
testinony in the hearing.

|f additional witten testinony is accepted, then
parties wll be allowed a reasonable tine to respond as
determ ned by the Board. The Board will then make its
decision at its next neeting session but no earlier than
48 hours after the hearing; noreover, the Board may
request additional specific information to conplete the
record. The Board and staff will specify at the end of

the hearing what is expected and the date when a person
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must submt the evidence to the Ofice of Zoning. No
other information shall be accepted by the Board.

Finally, the District of Colunbia Adm nistrative
Procedures Act requires that the public hearing on each
case be held in the open before the public; however,
pursuant to 405(b) and 406 of that act, the Board may,
consistent with its rules and procedures and the act,
enter into a closed neeting on a case for the purpose of
seeking | egal counsel on a case pursuant to D.C. Oficial
Code Section 2-575(b)(4) and/or deliberate on a case
pursuant to D.C. Oficial Code Section 2-575(b)(13) but
only after filing an adm nistrative public notice in the
case in where it's a closed neeting after obtaining rol
call vote.

Madam Secretary, do we have any prelimnary matters?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Good norni ng, Chairman and
Menbers of the Board. In terns of the schedul e today,
Application No. 21205 of Andria Matrone and Brian M1 ler
has been renoved fromthe Consent Cal endar as an expedited
review case and schedul ed for hearing on Decenmber 11,
2024.

Application No. 20507-B of Legacy Lofts II, LLC and
Legacy Lofts III, LLC has been rescheduled to the January
22, 2025 hearing.

And Appeal No. 21142 of ANC 6C has been wi thdrawn,
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In regards to late filings, the Chairman has revi ewed
and granted waivers to allow late filing into the
applicant's case records pursuant to Subtitle Y, Section
206. 7 and Section 103.13. Any other late filings during
the course of today's live hearing should be presented
before the Board by the applicant parties or wtnesses
after the case is called.

Any other prelimnary matters will be noted when the
case is called.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Thank you. Good nor ni ng,
everybody. | -- there's been sone issues -- or not
| ssues -- some things have been brought up to ny attention
that some nmenbers of the Board have to | eave earlier; and
so |'m hopeful that we're done by 11:45. That's at | east
what |'m shooting for, and we'll see how the day goes. |
have two Board nmenbers, which is enough for ny quorum and
| suppose we can at |east handl e the next item of concern.

Madam Secretary, if you want to call it.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: This is fromthe Board's neeting
session. |It's a party status request in Application No.
21205 of Andria Matrone and Brian Mller. This is a
self-certified application for special exceptions pursuant
to Subtitle X, Section 901.2; for a special exception
under Subtitle D, Section 5201; and the rear-yard

requi rements of Subtitle D, Section 207.1; and fromthe
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l ot (indiscernible) requirements of Subtitle D, Section
210.1. This is for a rear deck addition to an existing
two-story sem detached principal dwelling |ocated in the
R2 Zone at 3730 Wndom Pl ace Northwest, Square 1892, Lot
36. And before the Board is a request for party status
fromSarita Frattaroli and Travis Berge at 3732 W ndom
Pl ace Northwest.

And the -- earlier, this case was originally
schedul ed for today's public neeting as -- on the
Expedi t ed Revi ew Cal endar; however, per the regulations,
It was rescheduled for a hearing after the request for a
party status was fil ed.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. Are the party status

people here with us? GCkay. | see one.
Vel come Vice Chair John,
MS. FRATTAROLI: H there. |'mrequesting party

status. M nane is Sarita Frattaroli

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. M. Frattaroli, so | --
you' re the adjacent property; correct?

MS. FRATTARCLI: That's right. W're directly

attached - -
CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Gkay. Geat.
MS. FRATTAROLI: -- to --

CHAl RPERSON HI LL: G eat. Let's see. So | would

I magi ne that ny fellow Board nenbers woul d agree that you
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are nmeeting the criteria for us to grant party status; and
so what 1'd like to do is, again, just |let you know how
that works if ny fellow Board nenbers agree we ne, which |

believe they wll.

You'll have an opportunity to go ahead and present
your testinony. The -- the applicant will present their
case. You'll then have an opportunity to present your

case. Then the Ofice of Planning will have an
opportunity to present their case. You'll have an
opportunity to ask questions of the applicant and al so
questions of the Ofice of Planning.

You're -- you're a party in the case; so, you know,
you have an opportunity to give your testinmony. And so if
you have any questions, |let ne know.

MS. FRATTAROLI: And would | know bef orehand what the
O fice of Planning is going to say so | can prepare for
that, or does that just happen at the hearing?

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Sure. No. That will be in the

record. Do you -- do you know how to access the record?
MS. FRATTAROLI: Yes, | do. Thank you.
CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Gkay. | think maybe -- Madam
Secretary --
SECRETARY MEHLERT:  Yes.
CHAI RPERSON HILL: -- do we notify people -- do party

status peopl e know when the O fice of Planning submtted
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their report?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: | don't think they're notified,;
however, they are supposedly added to the record ten
days -- the requirenment is ten days before the hearing
SO --

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Ckay.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: -- two Fridays, usually, before
t he Wednesday heari ng.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: So you can check the record then,
Ms. Frattaroli at that tine; okay?

MS. FRATTAROLI: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HILL: Al right. 1'mgoing to nake a
motion then

Do ny fellow Board nenbers have any questions of
anyone? (kay.

|'mgoing to nake a notion to approve the party
status of Ms. Frattaroli. And | -- is -- is -- M. Berge,
is he wth you al so?

MS. FRATTAROLI: He's in ny house right now, but,
yeah, he's ny husband.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Well, Ms. Frattaroli, since
you're the only person here, it's okay, you're going to --

MS. FRATTARQOLI: Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON HILL: He -- he can testify with you, but

you're the one who's going to get party status because the
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person has to be here; okay?
MS. FRATTAROLI: Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: So we'll go ahead and gi ve you

party status. |'mgoing to nake a notion to approve the

party status for Ms. Frattaroli for Application 21205 and

ask for a second.
Ms. John?
VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.
CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Mdtion made and seconded.

Madam Secretary, take a roll call

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's

motion to grant party status.
Chairman H Il ?
CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Yes.
SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vi ce-Chair John?
VI CE- CHAl RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.
SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?
MR. BLAKE: Yes.
SECRETARY MEHLERT: Conm ssioner MIller?
COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff will record the vote as

four to zero to one to grant party status to Sarita

Frattaroli, the notion made by Chairman Hi Il and seconded

by Vi ce-Chair John.
CHAl RPERSON HI LL: Geat. M. Frattaroli, we'll

See
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you on 12/11.

COW SSI ONER M LLER: M. Chai r man?

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Yes.

MS. FRATTAROLI: Thank you.

COW SSIONER M LLER | had a -- | had a question
about this case. | didn't see the Ofice of Planning
report in the record.

Could -- if it is in the record, could the Secretary
direct me to the exhibit nunber?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: | inmagine it will be submtted
before the Decenber 11th hearing. | think since it was --
it was renoved fromthe Expedited Review Cal endar for
t oday, that was --

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Ckay.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: It, actually, affected the
timeline.

COW SSIONER M LLER.  So we're not considering nmerits
of the case today?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: No. No. It will be on Decenber
11t h.

COW SSI ONER M LLER  Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Perfect. Thank you. Thank
you, Ms. -- and I'lIl learn how to say your nane next tine.
How do you say it? GCkay. Al right.

|'mgoing to close this portion of the hearing and
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the record and then again officially wel cone Vice-Chair
John to the hearing. She is here now.

And you may call our next item

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Next is in the Board's hearing
session. This is Application No. 21010 of NL 1271 5th
Street, LLC. As anmended, this is a self-certified
application pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901.12; for
speci al exceptions under Subtitle C, Section 703.2; from
the m ni mum parking requirements of Subtitle C, Section
701.5; under Subtitle C, Section 909.2; fromthe | oading
requi rements of Subtitle C, Section 901.1; under Subtitle
C, Section 1501.1(d) to allow an eating or drinking
establ i shment | ocated within penthouse space; and then
there's Subtitle G Sections 207.14 and 5200 fromthe rear
yard requirements of Subtitle G Section 207.9.

This is for a new seven-story building with basenent,
pent house, and roof stack for use of the hotel with eating
and drinking establishnent and ground floor retail and/or
service uses |ocated in the MJ8B Zone at 1271 5th Street
Nort heast, Square 3591, Lot 3.

This hearing was originally schedul ed for Decenber
13, 2023 and has been postponed several tinmes while
waiting for the related zoning map anendnent to be final

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vi ce- Chai rman, you've -- you're on this case;

eScribers, LLC
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correct?
COW SSI ONER M LLER:  That's ny under st andi ng.
CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Geat. Let's see.

Coul d the applicant please introduce thenselves for

the record.

MR UTZ: Sure. Good norning. |'mJeff Uz with
Goul ston & Storrs. |'mland use counsel on behalf of the
applicant.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. M. Uz, welcone back. As
| mentioned, M. Uz, I'mtrying to be efficient today;

and | know that we've had a | ot of testinony concerning

this.

The questions -- | nean, now the -- the Zoning
Conmi ssion has acted. It's been set down. It was
publ i shed, et cetera. And so now we're able to -- to | ook

at this according to the -- the MJ 8B Zone; and so ny
questions, | guess, because | see that there are your
conditions or -- sonme of the conditions that you put
forward were in Exhibit 23; is that correct?

MR, UTZ: Yes. That is the set of conditions that
relates to the penthouse use, so that was a set of
conditions that was requested by the neighbor really
model ed on how there are simlar approvals for the -- the
same, essentially, accessory restaurant/bar use for

hotels. W nodeled this on that, and they inported, and
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then fine-tuned it with the neighbor. So --

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Right.

MR UTZ: -- yes, indeed.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. And then the -- you have a
| oadi ng managenent plan and a TDM pl an; correct?

MR UTZ: Correct.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  And which exhibits are those in
again, if they're easy for you to tell me?

MR UTZ2 So | will try for sure. The TDMplan is
Exhibit 22; and | think the |oading managenment plan is
part of our CTR, which is 13A

CHAI RPERSON HILL: I'msorry. The -- the |oading
managenent was in 22?

MR UTZ: It is. But | was just notified that

Exhi bit 30 consolidates everything into one condition set.

So we -- we --

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Al of it?

MR UTZ: Yeah.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: 23 is as well?

MR UTZ: Yes. Al of -- it -- it's intended to be,
kind of, an on-the-bus, kind of, condition snapshot for
this reason. So --

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: G eat.

MR UTZ: -- you see it all in one place, yeah.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: That's hel pful. GCkay. Al right.
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As | said, we had a lot of testimony for this.

Does the Board have anything to ask of the applicant
or the Ofice of Planning?

CGo ahead Vice-Chair John.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Were you going to hear from
the Ofice of Planning?

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: | didn't have anything to hear
fromthe Ofice of Planning, but I can hear fromthem |Is
the Ofice of Planning with us?

MR, LAWSON. Hi. Good norning, M. Chair and Menbers
of the Board. Joel Lawson filling in for Mxine
Brown- Roberts (ph) on this case. |'mhappy to stand on
the record in support of this case.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Ckay.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  (Okay. And just to clarify,
the map anmendnment is now final?

MR. LAWSON: Yes. It is final, and the order has
been issued by -- by the Zoni ng Conm ssion.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Ckay. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Ckay. Geat.

M. Young, is there anyone here wi shing to speak?

MR YOUNG W do not.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Gkay. Al right.

Well, M. WUz, you guys nmade is through; and | hope

the financing worked out for you; okay?
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MR, UTZ: Thank you. Yeah. W really appreciate
your -- the flexibility wth the scheduling and really
wanted to show our gratitude to the Ofice of Zoning Legal
Division and Zoni ng Comm ssion on the issuance of that
order, so thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Al right. Wlcone. Al right.
You all have a nice day. W're going to close the hearing
and the record.

MR, UTZ: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: On, sorry. Hold on. M. Blake?

MR. BLAKE: M. Chair, | don't believe |I've heard the
testinony fromthe applicant.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: No. They presented everything.

MR UTZ: So we --

SECRETARY MEHLERT: No. M. Blake is correct.

The -- sone nerits haven't been heard for this --
CHAI RPERSON HI LL: On, really?
SECRETARY MEHLERT: -- this case.
MR UTZ: See we've -- we discussed the -- we're

happy to stand on the record. W do have an application
presentation that's in the record that essentially
summari zes the application materials to the statenent.
We're happy to run through that in an expedited manner.
|f you would want us to do so, we can do that.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Sure. Go ahead. | -- |
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apol ogize. | don't know why | thought that we heard the
merits.

MR UTZ: Ckay. M. Young, could you please pull up
the |atest and the greatest presentation. Geat. Thank
you.

So I'll dive right in. Again, | wanted to thank you
for, kind of, working through the procedural history here.
We're really glad to be here today and excited to be at
this step.

As we tal ked about before, this map amendnent order
Is now final. W do have support fromthe ANC, DDOT,
nei ghbors, and tenants; so this is, indeed, ready to nove
f orward

Coul d you go to the next page, please.

Just for sake of orientation, the building is 1271
5th Street Northeast. |It's currently approved with a
two-story structure that will be denolished to make way
for this project, which will be a hotel with eating and
drinki ng establishment uses on the ground floor, possibly
t he second floor, and penthouse.

The existing building is nondescript. It was just
built in 1978. The image on the screen shows a context
| mge that Reynolds can address in nore details; and we're
happy to answer questions as well.

The ot is md-block, and it's about
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13- and- a- hal f -t housand square feet.

The next slide, please. This is just a sunmary, Kkind
of, a snapshot of the procedural history where it ended up
on the map amendnent; so it was, indeed, rezoned from
PDR-1 to MJ)8B. And that order did cone out |ast week on
the 15th.

Next slide, please. This is, kind of, a sunmary of
t he stakehol ders who have been involved to date. The ANC
s in support, OPis in support, DDOT filed a report of no
obj ections. They do have two conditions -- or one
condition relating to by -- parking, | believe, is really
in there for resolution. And we have sonme slides that can
speak to this; but we are in agreenent with all the
conditions from DDOT. Neighbors are in support, and the
comercial tenants are in support as well.

Next slide, please. This slide's intended to be a
hol i stic snapshot of the relief being requested. So there
are four special exceptions. The first one is that
parking will not be provided on the site given its use as
a hotel and the amount of parking avail able nearby. This
|'s appropriate particularly when you consider the snal
size of the lot and the infeasibility of building on-site
structure parKking.

Secondly, loading is also required -- loading relief

Is also required. There is one full-size berth and
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pl at f orm bei ng provi ded; but because of the potential size
of the hotel conponent just peaking above 50,000 square
feet, there is a need to get relief fromthat second

| oadi ng berth. So the team studied other simlarly-sized
hotels in the area and determned that is second berth is
not necessary for a hotel of this size; and there's al so,
as nentioned, a |oadi ng managenent plan that DDOT has

vi ewed.

Third, the project seeks to include an eating and
drinking use on the penthouse level, which requires a
speci al exceptions. As nentioned, this is fairly common
relief for a hotel; and EDENS agreed to conditions based
on those conditions that exist on other hotels and then
di scussions w th nei ghbors.

And then, fourth and finally, there is a request for
modest rear yard relief. The project could satisfy the
rear yard relief by shifting the building to the west out
towards the street and not setting back fromthat
building -- fromthe building ot |ine; however, EDENS did
want to create that closet area at the front of the
bui I ding to enhance the streetscape and create sone
i nteresting opportunities for programmng there.

The effect of the -- at the rear of the building is
to shorten the required rear yard; but doing so is

possi bl e because there's a 35-foot-wi de private alley at
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the rear that the neighboring property owner, EDENS, and
the property owner to the south have entered into creating
areally nice interior courtyard.

Wth that alternative, over to Reynolds quickly to
speak about the applicant and sone of the other conponents
of the project.

MR. ALLEN. Thank you, Jeff. Thank you all for
giving us time to present our project today. M nane's
Reynol ds Alan. |'mthe nanaging director for EDENS or
devel oper, owner, and operator of community buil ding
retail and m xed-use places across the country. Locally,
we' ve been working on the EDENS mar ket project since 2006
really with the goal to try to influence the districts
vision for the area, which is laid out in the 2009 EC
counsel adopted for Avenue Market small-area enpl oynent.

Over the last 18 years, 15 of which |I've been
i nvol ved in the project, we've been fortunate, really, to
forma strong bond and relationship with the comunity;
and in working with the conmmunity and working -- it's been
great to see that small-area plan that the comunity
envisioned comng to life. And this project that we're
here to speak about today, | think, furthers that.

Next slide, please. So what we're here to present
today is a project to enable us to bring a new hotel

project to -- to -- to the Union Market District. The
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proposed will |ower density to the surrounding properties.
It's al so set back, proposed to create relief in nmassing
I n the streetscape.

Next slide, please. So while the programresults in
a lower overall building square footage, we really found
that we nust add in the neighborhood in the long term
which really matches how we view our projects. W invest
in the | ong-term perspective as the |ong-term owners and
operators of our -- of our properties.

Next slide, please. Just to orient you, the |ocation
Is a small parcel directly across the street fromthe
Village Cafe; and, actually, our offices for EDENS are
| ocated right across the street as well. The building is
a vacant whol esal e beauty supply building when we acquired
it nine years ago. It sits between a recently-constructed
120-f oot apartnent building called the Morse to the south,
whi ch you see in the bottomright picture; and then the
pl anned devel opnent on getting that university and parcels
on the other two sides, which the project is approved for
120-foot height, a tall project on those -- that current
parking | ot.

Qur hotel project is proposed to be on half plate,
hal f behind the residential buildings on all those
adj acent parcels.

Next slide, please. Wat you see here is a page from
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the Florida Avenue Market small-area plan that |'ve
mentioned. As you see here, the intent was to encourage
revitalization in the area. The property that we're
presenting today is the area known as nedi um hi gh density,
which we've followed the snmaller plan to the T for the
direction on uses, height density for this project.

Next slide, please. Wwen -- we first introduced the
i dea of this project to OP and DDOT starting in early
2023, so we've been out in front making sure the comunity
and agencies were aware and had input for close to two
years now. W initially presented the project to ANC, to
their Zoning Devel opnent Conmittee in August of '23, then
went to the comunity as a whole. Utimately, in
Septenber of |ast year, we got our votes in support; and
then cane back the ANC early of this year to update them
on projects, and adjustnents needed to be nade and all --
eventual |y, getting another letter of support, which was
i ncluded in our application filing today.

Al so, starting back early last year, we revi ewed our
plans at Gallaudet University, JBG Smth, ELCOR Al of
t he neighbors all expressed support for the project,
agreeing with the use and | ooking favorably on the
i ncreased light and air the project offered versus the
previously planned PUD that woul d have been here for

(indiscernible).
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One request, as Jeff mentioned, were sone conditions
related to the eating and drinking establishnment at the
pent house | evel, which we agreed to and included as part
of our subm ssion, the letter signed by the parties
confirmng these conditions. So, overall, the reception
of the plan has been pretty positive.

Next slide, please. So just quickly running through
the plans, the building section, | already nentioned the
ANC support for the penthouse use conditions. W've also
included letters of support fromthe tenants currently
operating the building. Both of these tenants have
| ong-termrel ati onshi ps before their tenancy here at Union
Mar ket w th EDENS.

Next slide, please. Gound floor, as | nentioned,
really what we envision is a community gathering place on
the ground floor. W're setting the building back to
create some really nice outdoor space as well

Next slide, please. This is your typically floor
plate for the hotel floor.

Next slide, please. And then the -- the top
pent house | evel as well.

Next slide, please. Conceptual rendering to give you
a feel for what we're envisioning for it but also how it
relates to the massing on either side.

And then next slide, please. And then | wanted to
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hit on two things related to the relief requested today.
One is parking. So one special exception that we are
requesting is relief fromparking, and I'd like to explain
the thinking and strategy around this. So what | nean is
that there's a conprehensive parking strategy for the
overal |l area, and it was recogni zed back in the early
stages of the Union Market revitalization, that we really
need to think about the 45-acre district holistically.

So based on the fact that there's a very |arge nunber
of small -- snall properties owned by many different smal
owners, plus the intent to preserve the 1930s buil di ngs,
which we can refer to as the spine, there was a strategy
t hat we devel oped along with DDOT, along with other --
other owners in the area to really focus on a few | arger
pool s of parking on the larger parcels to support the
par ki ng needs for the overall area.

So what we see on this slide are those |arger parcels
where | arger garages could or have been constructed to
support the parking needs for the entire area. So as of
today, there's 1,991 parking spaces that have been
constructed; and 602 of those are available for public
parking. Another 1,432 spaces are planned, addi ng anot her
421 spaces that will be open to the public resulting in
over 1,000 spaces open for public use. |It's been a

really -- | think -- | would say well-thought-out,
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wel | - coordi nated plan that serves the nei ghborhood well to
keep attracting visitors to the area to support businesses
that are here and the ones to cone.

The parking needs for this particular project, we are
presenting they are mnimal, which | think we're also able
to discuss a bit further in a nmonent through a technical
lens. We've also discussed with nultiple hotel operating
conpanies to nake sure we're thinking about this the right
way. All of those have confirnmed parking needs to be very
limted, as it's nostly ride-share; and that parking
strategy for the area is nore than adequate to address
what |imted parking needs there nay be.

Next slide, please. Next, | just want to explain the
mul tiparty (indiscernible) agency planning that resulted
I n what you see here regarding access, |oading, and
servicing all buildings for this block. Wat you see here
Is an illustration of the recorded easenent between three
property owners that provide service access to al
bui I di ngs, homes, and block via a single curb cut to avoid
needing curb cuts and keep the traffic off of 5th Street.
This was is recomendation from DDOT, which then all
parties worked on to |land at the best location for this
al | ey.

| mention this as loading this area -- loading is an

area of relief requested today; so | wanted to share with
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you why we feel the relief is justified. W've also
di scussed demand with experienced hotel devel opers and
operators; and the overwhel m ng response is that a hotel
this size does not any nore than one |oading berth at the
most, reason being we shoul d expect, at nost, three trucks
per day, which can easily be spread out throughout the day
to not need access to the |loading berth at the sane tine.

And, last, this point also helps depict the rear yard
separation where the three parties have all agreed to this
shared alley that creates well -- nore of themto conbine,
| et al one separation between the properties. The alley is
more than 30-feet wide, which is several feet w der than
what woul d be required between the two parcels.

And with that, I'Il hand it off to Gorove Sl ade.

MR. VANPELT: Al right. Thank you, Reynolds. Good
morni ng. Next slide, please.

Good norning, |'mDan VanPelt. |'mthe
Vi ce- Presi dent and Senior Principal of Gorove Sl ade.
W' ve been working with EDENS and the project team and

DDOT related to the transportation aspects of this

proj ect.
At -- this slide shows the wealth of transportation
options that are afforded to the site. |I'mnot going to

go into in detail just in the interest of tine, but |

woul d point out that we're a ten-mnute walk fromthe
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Uni on Market -- sorry -- Norma Gal |l audet Metro Station.
And we have two hi gh-frequency netro bus routes that are
just very nearby.

Next slide, please. So as nentioned by Reynolds, the
proj ect proposes no on-site vehicular parking places, no
new curb cuts. The good thing, the curb cut on 5th Street
Is going to be closed; and it will be provide on-street
parking that will serve as a hotel pickup/dropoff zone
along the frontage of the site. And the design of those
curbside i nprovenents will be according to DDOT during the
public space permtting project.

There were two different devel opnents in the area
that were considered. The applicant is requesting relief
from-- between 20 to 26 on-site vehicul ar parking spaces.
The nunmber, kind of, depends on which one of those options
were chosen; so no -- no vehicular on-site parking spaces
are to be provided. It's not expected to have a
detrimental inpact due to the site's proximty to all the
mul tinmodal facilities that are -- were just on the
previous slide and given the fact that we have so nmany
offsite publicly-avail abl e parki ng garage spaces as
Reynol ds di scussed just a bit ago.

Also, with the robust transportation, the managenent
plan that's been coordinated with DDOT, that will help

mtigate inpact and reduce the use of singular-occupancy
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vehicles serving the new -- new project. Per the staff
report, DDOT's supportive of this requested parking
relief; and since there will be no spaces on site, the
hotel will utilize valet to either take patron cars to the
par ki ng garages; or they will self-park thenselves in the
publ i cly-accessi bl e garages.

Additionally, the applicant is requesting the relief
to provide two | oading berths; and they propose one
12- by-30-foot | oading berth and one 100 square foot
| oading platform This relief is not expected to have a
detrinmental inpact based on data that was collected at
some conparable hotel sites in D.C. and sone information
that was provi ded by EDENS on the expected operational
needs.

The proposed project is conservatively expected to
generate no nore than six deliveries a day, which could be
adequately managed by the -- the single |oading berth. So
DDOT' s reviewed this information, and they're al so
supportive of this relief if -- provided that we -- the
condition that we provide a | oadi ng managenent plan, that
that's inplemented, and that has -- that has been agreed
to. And, also, all |oading naneuverers are going to
happen in the private alley; so there will be no backing
fromthe street. It's all head-in/head-out.

Bicycle circulation is also shown on the slide in
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| ight blue. There's pedestrian circulation shown in dark
blue. In response to DDOT recommendations, there wll be
ei ght long-term bicycle parking spaces and ten short-term
bi cycl e parking spaces proposed regardl ess of the

devel opnent scenario; so it will neet or exceed the
district's mnimumrequirements for the retail hotel uses.
Access to long-termbicycle spaces wll take place via 5th
Street inthe alley, and the short-termspaces will be
avail able along the site's frontage on 5th Street. And
that -- those locations will be determ ned during public
space permtting.

There will also be two showers and four |ockers for
enpl oyees to use. And pedestrian access wll be fromb5th
Street Northeast.

Next slide, please. | won't go into the
transportation nanagenment plan in detail. |t contains
many of the -- the conponents that were expected by DDOT
and are pretty typical but happy to answer any questions
about that. And this is all captured in detail in the --
inthe -- in the record and have been agreed to.

So the next slide, please. Just to wap up, speaking
of alittle nore about DDOT coordination, we did a
conprehensive transportation review, which was scoped with
DDOT. Again, the study concluded that the site will not

have a detrinental inpact given the -- the robust
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transportation at work around it, the nultiple nodes; and
the fact that we're providing short-termand |ong-term
bicycle parking will help mtigate inpact. The loading is
bei ng acconmpdat ed out of the public roadway network. The
streetscape along the frontage is going to be
significantly enhanced, and the | oadi ng managenment pl an
and the transportati on managenent plans will also help
mtigate outside inpacts. And so we're pleased to have no
objection in the staff report from DDOT.

And with that, I'll conclude nmy testinony and turn it
over to Jeff.

MR UTZ: Geat. Thank you, Dan.

Can we go to the next slide, please. So I'll just
qui ckly sunmmarize the -- the standards and then how we
meet the standards. And | know that we're expediting
this, and |'mhappy to answer any questions if | don't hit
on everything. So there are four nore slides -- just
pl ease bear with us -- each shining a light on the
| ndi vi dual conponents of the relief that we're requesting.
The detailed justification is Exhibit 17A

But the first parking relief under Subtitle --

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Hey, M. Wz?

MR UTZ: Yep.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Yeah, go ahead and take your tine.

| think -- for sonme reason, since | went through your

eScribers, LLC
(800) 257-0885 Ext 7 | reporting@escribers.net | www.escribers.net



http://www.escribers.net

32

© 00 N oo o1 B~ w NP

N DN N D NDdMND PP PPk
g B~ W N B O © 00 N OO O A W NN ., O

slide deck and everything, | thought you guys presented,

so pl ease --

MR UTZ: Al right.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: -- go ahead and -- and take your
tinme. | don't want my Board nenbers to feel as though
they don't have an opportunity to -- to ask questions.

MR, UTZ: Sure. GCkay. Geat. Thank you, Chairman.

So the first is for parking relief under Subtitle C,
Section 703.2. That permts the Board to grant speci al
exception relief for the nunber of parking spaces upon
satisfaction of any one or nore of approximtely ten
conditions. This project meets conditions in Subsection
703.2(b) through (e) and (g), which pertain to the
avai lability of transit nearby, the | and use of the
nei ghbor hood, the amount of traffic expected, the nature
of the expected uses, and the quantity of existing
conmerci al spaces other than on-street parking, which is
what Reynol ds was shining a light on with the sunmary
slide for the Union Market District itself.

In sum the site is very well-served by transit; and
given the hotel use, nobst visitors and enpl oyees woul d
either arrive by transit or via a ride-share where
overni ght parking isn't necessary. For those guests and
enpl oyees who do need to park nearby, there's a |large and

grow ng reservoir of parking in the nei ghborhood as
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di scussed.

Final |y, EDENS has agreed to a DDOT-approved CDM
plan -- next slide, please, thank you -- for the |oading
relief under Subtitle C section 909.2. So the project
does provide one on-site berth but a second berth is
unnecessary given the type of use, the hotel, and the size
of the hotel. EDENS did agree to operate the project
subject to a | oadi ng managenent plan, as discussed by
CGorove Sl ade; and that was approved by DDOT.

Next slide, please. Third, for the penthouse relief
under Subtitle C, Section 1501.1(d), the proposed eating
and drinking establishnent use in the penthouse woul d not
have adverse effects given its |ocation and especially
given the conditions that EDENS agreed to with the
nei ghboring property owner. This use will be typical for
hotel uses of this type and really accentuate the -- the
ability for guests to integrate with the nei ghborhood and
enjoy the facility.

Next slide, please. Finally, for rear yard relief
under Subtitle G Section 207.14, the probabl e does not
have any apartnment wi ndows or office w ndows. The private
alley at the rear of the project is effectively a rear
yard of the required wdth, but a portion of that alley is
shifted onto the abutting property given the agreed-upon

| ayout of the alley, which, again, was the subject of a
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DDOT and -- and Ofice of Planning initiative and the
Zoning Commi ssion -- ultimately, approval between those
property owners. So it is this nice contrived type
easenent that creates open space and nore, kind of,
operational control and cooperation in that alley; and the
result is that offset from5th Street that creates an
addi ti onal enhancenent to the public space. It's allow ng
for nore programm ng of the adjacent streetscape.

So with that, I -- | amhappy to answer any questions
on the specifics of the standards and how this project
relates to themand satisfies them but, otherw se, we
believe that this applicationis -- is set up to nove
forward. We're happy to answer any questions or go back
to any slides that mght be of interest. And thank you
for allowng us to present.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you, M. Uz.

Do -- does ny Board nenbers have any questions of the
applicant?

Go ahead, Vice-Chair Mller.

COW SSIONER MLLER | -- I'mnot sure | have any

questions, but | just want to thank the applicant for the
presentation today and for all your work with district
agenci es and the community and nei ghbor engagenent that
you' ve done garnering the support of ANC 5D and al so the

existing tenants in the -- in the building.
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So are those tenants -- do you -- | -- have you

i dentified other space for themonce the project gets

devel oped or -- | knowthey -- they -- | believe they've
submtted letters of support; but you -- have you
identified -- or you're -- you're working with themif
they have -- if they have a desire to be somewhere in the

Uni on Market District?

MR. ALLEN. W haven't -- thank you for all that. W
have not identified specific locations yet. One of the --
one of the businesses that's there, it's been in actual
mul tiple buildings for over a decade with us in the area;
and we'll look to continue to find |locations for her --
for her, as well as the other business in the first floor
of that building. But we actually provided all of their
equi pment and worked -- and opened their business to start
wth, in fact, about eight years ago. W've done it for
over 15 years, so we hope to find new | ocations for them
wi thin the overall Union Market District for sure.

COW SSI ONER M LLER  Wel |, thank you for that; and
t hank you, M. Allen, for all of EDENS work in
revitalizing this -- this -- this area. Thank you.

MR. ALLEN. Thank you all.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you. M. Bl ake?

MR, BLAKE: |, actually, don't have any questions,
M. Chair.
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| was -- | was curious if there was going to be a
contribution fromthe penthouse, but that's about the only
thing I -- | had as a question.

MR UTZ: There will Dbe.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: M. Uz, if --

MR UTZ: So -- yep. So we estimate that it wll be
about $200, 000 based on the approxi mate square footage of
t hat commercial space; so, indeed, there will be a CIC
addendum and a paynent to get to the permt
(indiscernible).

MR. BLAKE: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Ckay. Anyone el se?

Vi ce- Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Just a question about one of
the condition that nentioned that the special exception
Wwll go on for the l[ife of the project; so | don't think
that's appropriate because the special -- you know,
speci al exception would continue as long as the use
exists. So we mght want to | ook at that again and ask
the OZ -- OZ to nodify that condition

CHAI RPERSON HILL: | agree, and | don't think the
applicant -- do you have any issues with that, M. Uz?

MR UTZ: W -- we do not. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: kay. Geat. Thank you. Al
right. Anyone else? kay.

eScribers, LLC
(800) 257-0885 Ext 7 | reporting@escribers.net | www.escribers.net



http://www.escribers.net

37

© 00 N o o bk~ w N P

N T T N I T N B e e e N R S N T
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o A W N Lk O

|'mgoing to go back. Al right. GCkay. | wll

second M. MIller's cooments on all the work that you guys

have done and -- particularly for that area. It's a
| ovely area, | hope you guys with very successful.
All right. That's it. ['mgoing to close hearing

and the record.
MR. UTZ: Thank you so nuch
CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Thank you. Gkay. Thanks. GCkay

| apol ogize to ny fellow Board nmenbers. Every tine |'m

trying to hurry up, | seemto, kind of, |ike, always get a
little bit gumed up nyself. But 1'll take a deep breath
and see if | can still nake what | need to do -- |

think -- the only thing | can think of is | went through
the slide deck and the record, and | was |ike | thought
t hey presented.

So | didn't have any issues with the application.
t hought that the slide deck, in particular, nmade it very

easy to understand each step that they were wal ki ng

through. | thought that the conditions that they were
putting forward for -- in particular, for the restaurant
was hel pful. | think that, you know, the fact that they

have al so garnered the support of the ANC and the
nei ghbors and the O fice of Planning also helps with ny
feeling that they're neeting the criteria to grant the

relief and that they're neeting the -- the -- the
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regul ati ons.

So I'mgoing to be voting in favor of the application
with the conditions in Exhibit 30. And do thank the
applicant for putting everything together in one place and
then al so noting that the OZLD woul d help craft the
condition in a way that it doesn't state for the life of
the project and adhere to the way that we normal ly put
that condition in.

Do you have anything to add, M. Bl ake?

MR. BLAKE: Sure. Thank you very nmuch. | agree wth
your analysis of the case. It does seemfairly
straightforward. The applicant has provided a fairly
conprehensive outline of the project and how the
conditions for the criteria for approval have been net for
all the areas of -- of relief.

This is an attractive collaborative devel opnment with
regards to the alley, dealing with the |oading and so
forth; and I think that the parking, obviously, again, is
a very attractive col | aborative effort given the -- the
zone and the area that has been devel oped with the
mul tiple parking options. | agree with the conditions as
outlined in Exhibit 30, which is titled Exhibit A with
the only carve-outs being the phrase, as you pointed out,
for the life of the project in Sections B and C.

| give a great weight to the office of -- | -- --

eScribers, LLC
(800) 257-0885 Ext 7 | reporting@escribers.net | www.escribers.net


http://www.escribers.net

39

© 00 N o o bk~ w N P

N T T N I T N B e e e N R S N T
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o A W N Lk O

appreciate the Ofice of Planning's report, which also

col | aborated -- supported the -- the application and give
great weight to their recomendation for approval. | know
DDOT supported the project with the conditions, of course,
provided in the TDM and | oad managenent plans. | note
that ANC 5B is in support, as well as the neighbors and
comercial tenants; so | wll be voting in favor of the
appl i cation.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vi ce- Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Thank you, M. Chairman. |
agree with your assessnent, as well as Board Menber
Bl ake's conments; and |I'min support of the application.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vice-Chair Mller?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Thank you, M. Chairman. |
concur with your comments and those of ny fellow Board
menbers.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you. All right.

"Il make a notion to approve Application No. 21010
with the conditions in Exhibit 30B, as nmentioned by ny
col |l eagues, as well as referring to the life of the
project and QZLD crafting some different wording for that;
and I'll ask for a second.

Ms. John?
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VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you. The notion was nade
and seconded.

Madam Secretary?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
nmotion to approve the application wth conditions.

Chairman H Il?

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vi ce-Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MR. BLAKE: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: And, Conm ssioner Mller?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as
four to zero to one to approve Application 21010 with
conditions on the notion made by Chairman H Il and
seconded by Vice-Chair John with Board Menber Smth not
partici pating.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Very good. Thank you.

Could we go to our next one when you get a chance,
Madam Secretary.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Next is Application No. 21195 of
Asha Payne and Onay Payne, trustees. It was a

self-certified application pursuant to Subtitle F, Section
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1002 for a use variance fromSubtitle U, Section 201 to
al l ow a second principal dwelling.

Soit's for a new principal dwelling in the basenent
of an existing two-story attached principal dwelling.
It's located in the R-3 Zone at 10 Grard Street
Nor t heast, Square 3500, Lot 82.

And | would just ask -- you mght want to ask the
applicant to clarify the relief they're requesting. There
were several docunments submtted late last night. ']l
al so note that ANC 5E submtted their report last night in
Exhibit 29.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Geat. Thank you.

| f the applicant can hear ne, if they could please
I ntroduce thensel ves for the record.

MS. WLLIAVS: H . Good nmorning. M nanme is
Evangine WIlianms, an attorney on behalf of the applicant,
Ms. -- the Payne sisters.

CHAI RPERSON HILL: Okay. M. Wllians, is -- the
relief that is requested, is it the same that the
secretary just read?

M5. WLLIAVS: Yes. W're -- this is a single-use
dwelling that we're wanting to turnintoa-- atw -- or
create an accessory dwelling in it in the basenent.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Yep.

M5. WLLIAVS: And --
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CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Let me just say the relief that --
the relief that was spoken of is the relief that you guys
still have in your self-certified application; correct?

MS. WLLIAMS: Yes, that's correct.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Geat. Wuat 1'd like to
do, Ms. Wllians, is go ahead and give you an opportunity
to present your case as to why you believe your client is
needing the relief requested. I'mgoing to put 15 mnutes
on the clock just so I know where we are, and you can
begi n whenever you'd |ike.

MS. WLLIAMS: Al right. So we are requesting
the -- as a right, the single dwelling unit for our
clients to create the accessory dwelling unit in their
basenent .

As you can see by Exhibits 2 and 3 that show the
front of the house, it already has the entrance for the
basenent; and Exhibit 1 shows the rear of the house, which
shows that the basement entrance in the front and rear
al ready exist. The architectural drawi ngs only show
alterations to the inside of the building; therefore,
not hing on the outside changes. It's in conformty with
the housing that's already there.

The reason that we're -- the only exception that
we're asking is that our clients are -- they're not going

to be using it as their main residence. They would rent
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out the top unit and the bottomunit, and we're asking for
arelief fromthis requirement. | realize that 205.2(a)
relates to unattached; but the sentinent still remains the
same, that the nonresidential use is capable of being
establ i shed and operated w thout adversely affecting the
use and enjoynent of nei ghboring and nearby properties due
to traffic, noise, design, or other objectionable

condi tions because the basenent -- the basement in the
hone -- it will be a two-unit hone, except the homeowner
wi ||l be an hour away in Marlboro; and her sister resides

i n New York.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Let ne hear fromthe Ofice
of Planning first, then I'Il turn to ny fell ow Board
memnbers.

MS. WLLIAMS: Ckay.

MS5. MYERS: (Good norning, Crystal Myers for the
O fice of Planning. The Ofice of Planning reviewed this
for relief fromU201.1 for a use variance relief. The
additional relief inthe -- inthe file, OP didn't review
and I'monly now just starting to get a little bit of
understanding of it. So, unfortunately, | can't really
speak too much on it.

But LP is recommendi ng denial for the use variance.
We've said that we believe that an accessory apartnent use

for the -- for the second unit is nore appropriate than
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asking for relief to do two principal dwelling units in
the building. An accessory apartnent use could probably
be a matter of right; and, therefore, no BZArelief is
needed. However, if there is a need for sonme |evel of
relief, then it would be a special exception; but it would
mean that one -- the owner would have to |ive on the
property and the second unit then could be rented out. So
OP is recommendi ng deni al because there i s another option,
t he accessory apartnent option.

And with that, | can stand on the record with the
staff report. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: G eat. Thank you, Ms. Mers.

Ckay. Do ny fellow Board nmenbers have any questions
for the applicant and/or the Ofice of Planning?

Sure. Good ahead, Vice-Chair MIler

COMWM SSI ONER M LLER | guess | -- thank you for the
presentation by the applicant and by the Ofice of
Planning. | appreciate all your work on the case.

Can -- Ms. WIllianms, can you indicate why the

alternative accessory dwelling unit option is not being

pursued, which would be a matter of right if the -- if you
met the conditions of the owner staying in the -- one of
the -- one of the units. | guess that's the condition

that you don't want to neet.

MS. WLLIAMS: Yes, that's correct. The -- while
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that is an option, as one of our clients does live in the
nearby Maryl and area, we -- they would |like -- she
currently owns that house and would like to rent this one
out as a substitute; and the other sister lives up in New
Yor k.

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Ckay. Well, the use variance
Is a very high threshold to -- to neet the criteria. |'ll
just leave it at that for now. Thank you.

MS. WLLIAMS: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. M. Young, is there anyone
here wi shing to speak?

MR. YOUNG Yeah. You have two ANC Conm ssioners on

the |ine.

CHAI RPERSON HILL: Onh, great. Let's see. | didn't
see them \Were are -- oh, there -- | didn't recognize
t hem

Ch, M. -- Conmissioner Vining -- all right,
Conmi ssi oner, would you like to go ahead and gi ve your
testi nony?

MR VINNNG It -- it's very, very brief. |'mnoting

as -- Kirby Vining, I"'mthe ANC s -- Advisory Nei ghborhood
commi ssion, a single nenber district 5E06 in which this
property is located, in the Stronghol d nei ghborhood.

|'d like to ask before | go any further there -- the

Chair of our ANC 5E is joining us here. | -- 1 wll be
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addressing the case but wanted to ask if she had any
comment before | proceed.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Sure. Madam Chairnman, do you
have -- could you introduce yourself for the record. |'m
sorry. You're on nute, Conm ssioner.

MS5. LEWS: Sorry about that.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: That's all right.

MS. LEWS: M nane is Karla Lewis. | amthe
Chai rperson for ANC 5E.

This application has come before our Zoning
Conmittee, as well as ANC as the ANC Conmission. And the
ANC Zoni ng Conm ssion recommends denial of the application
because of what has been stated by the O fice of Planning;
and the ANC 5E has al so voted to deny the application
because, as was stated before, it already has an accessory
dwel I'ing unit.

And what they're asking for here -- this is nore or
| ess a zoning case, not really a BZA case -- they're
asking, basically, to change froman RF-3 to a RF-1; but
"Il et Conm ssioner Vining state the particulars,

MR VINNNG Thank you. We net with a
representative, |egal counsel for the applicant on
Septenber 11th; and sonething that inmediately came to our
attention was looking in -- the proposed project

description, basically, described a standard accessory
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dwelling unit. And | asked the counsel for the -- for the
property owner why wasn't -- that wasn't even being
consi dered because that's, as we understood it, the
descri ption, basenent apartnent woul dn't even need to go
to the BZA at all; however, what was expressed in the
original statenent of intended use did make explicit
reference to a request for a variance that woul d be RF-1
in an entirely RR3 -- R 3 nei ghborhood and poi nted out
that there are many houses on the sanme block as this
property that have the standard accessory dwelling unit
In-- 1in -- in the basenent.

| asked -- asked why that was -- why that was
requesting this -- this variance for RF-1. And we noticed
just yesterday the application was revised; and it renoved
references to RF-1, which we were saying that woul d be
a -- a map anendnent, go to Zoning, not BZA. But the
application still contained the words two principal
residence units and flats, both of which are terms for --

for RF-1 and not RF-3. But that was a Septenber 11lth

meeting, and we encouraged the -- the Zoning Conmttee
of -- ANC 5E encouraged the applicant to cone back to us
and -- and consider the various options, as we -- we

t hought this could be very easy if it was a direct
application for an accessory dwelling unit; but we did not

hear again fromthe representative of the property at all
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until we saw an e-mail|l saying that the application been --

had been revised. And it just renoved -- essentially, it
just renoved the words RF-1, although asking for
perm ssions that are appropriate for RF-1 and not RF-3.
And a Chair of our ANC, Chair Lewis, just stated the
Form 129 we submtted |ast night. W're sorry that that
was so late. W had hoped to have another neeting at the
Zoning Commttee at ANC 5E before that meeting, but there
was -- we were not able to make our -- nake our case unti
our ANC neeting |ast night.
Thank you. |'mavailable for questions on that, but
you've got our Form 129 now. It was submtted |ast night
CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Thanks, Conmi ssioner.

All right. Does -- well, first of all, M. Young, is

t here anyone el se wi shing to speak?

MR, YOUNG No, we do not.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Does the Board have any
questions of the Comm ssioners? kay.

Ch, sorry. Comm ssioner MIler?

COW SSIONER M LLER  Ch, no, | have no questions.
just wanted to thank the ANC 5E, Karla Lew s, and Kirby
Vining for your work on this case and in the nei ghborhood
general ly. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Does the applicant have any questions of the
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Conmi ssi oners?

MS. WLLIAMS: | do not at this tine,

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Al right. Let's see.

Does anybody have any questions of anybody before | |et
them go? Al right.

Ms. WIlians, do you have anything you' d |ike to add
at the end?

M5. WLLIAVS: Not at this tinme. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Thank you.

All right. 1'mgoing to go ahead and cl ose the
hearing and the record. M. young, if you' d please excuse
everyone.

| just realized we're -- well, | didn't -- M. Smth,
| guess, is not wth us today; and so he's not going to be
wth us today. So -- okay.

| think -- | just want to be clear. | asked the
applicant what they were here for, and they were here for
a self-certified application pursuant to Subtitle X 1002
for a use variance from Subtitle U201 to allow a second
principal dwelling. And this is for a new principal
dwel ling in the basenent of an existing two-story attached
principal dwelling; so it's here, again, for a use
vari ance.

And then we heard fromthe O fice of Planning and

read the report where, you know, they don't see how
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they're meeting the extraordinary or exceptional situation
for the use variance. And, as we all know, the use
variance is the highest standard that we have or the

hi ghest relief that we can give; and | don't -- and even
in the application itself, they say that there's not
really an exceptional condition or situation other than
the person is unable to live there, | think, as, kind of,

t he owner-occupied issue. But -- and then | don't even
think that that |eads to a peculiar and excepti onal
practical difficulty; and | also don't think that the
relief can be granted w thout substantial detrinent to the
public good and without substantially inpairing the

I ntent, purpose, and integrity of the zone pl an.

And so | -- and then the ANC had gone through the
entire process wth their Zoning Comm ssion, as well, and
woul d agree that this is not sonmething that they have net
the criteria for us to grant. So |I'mnot going to be able
to vote in favor of it because | don't think they' ve net
the criteria.

M. Blake, do you have anything you' d |ike to add?

MR. BLAKE: | agree with your assessnment, M. Chair.
The use variance standard is a very high bar. It does
require that by reason of exceptional narrowness,
shal | owness, or shape of a specific piece of property or

by reason of exceptional topographical conditions or an
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exceptional situation or condition of a specific piece of
property, the strict application of any regulation would
result in exceptionally undue hardship upon the owner of
the property.

In this case, the applicant has not denonstrated that
the property is unique. In fact, as the Ofice of
Pl anning and the ANC pointed out and as well as you
poi nted out, the applicant acknow edges that the property
itself is not exceptional or unique.

And, also, we realize that there are several other
properties around the area with a simlar configuration;
but I do think the applicant has al so argued that the
support of the variance centers really around its

contribution to the public good in addressing the clear

need for affordable housing, whichis -- is in itself
together not a -- a reason to -- to -- a sufficient
situation to generate -- to nmeet the criteria for which we

have to nake this decision.

| would admt that the physical attributes of the
property would be largely the same, but the regul ations
for this R3 Zone flies -- this request flies in the face
of that because those regulations they talked to are nore
of a flat situation. And so | agree with the assessnent
by -- by the ANC 5C that you would require sone type of

an -- or some action by the Zoning Comm ssion to really
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make this work if they're unable to do what the
regulations in the R-3 Zone allow. So | give great weight
to the recommendati on of the O fice of Planning, and |

al so give great weight to the issues and concerns that
were appropriately raised by the ANC 5E

| will not be in support of this application.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vi ce- Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Thank you, M. Chairman. |
agree with your assessnent and Board Menber Bl ake's
assessnment, and | amalso not in support of the
appl i cation.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vice-Chair Mller?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Thank you, M. Chairman. I,

too, agree with Board Menber Bl ake's and your and Board

Menmber John's comrents as -- and -- and their -- and the
testinony in -- in -- fromthe Ofice of Planning and ANC
5E that the criteria for a use variance has -- has not

been net in this case. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Thank you, M. Mller.

All right. 1'mgoing to nake a notion to deny the
application of 21195 and ask for a second.

Ms. John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Thank you, M. Chairman.
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woul d just add as captioned and read by the Secretary,

and - -

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Thank you. Yeah.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  -- | woul d second t hat
not i on.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Thank you.

Madam Secretary, the notion has been nade and
seconded, if you could please take a roll call vote.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
notion to deny the application.

Chairman Hi Il ?

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vi ce-Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes, to deny.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Bl ake? M. Bl ake?

MR. BLAKE: Yes, to deny.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Conm ssioner MIller?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Yes, to deny.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as
four to zero to one to deny Application 21190 on the
notion made by Chairman H Il and seconded by Vice-Chair
John with Board Menber Smith not participating.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Geat. Thank you.

Do you guys want to do one nore and then take a

break, or do you want to take a break now?
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VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Take a break now. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Geat. Al right. Then we

w |l see you guys in 20 m nutes.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

(Of the record.) 104941

SECRETARY MEHLERT: The Board is returning to its
hearing session after a quick break; and the next is
Application No. 21196 of John Kenkel and Marka Peterson.

As anended, this is a self-certified application for
speci al exceptions pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901.2;
under Subtitle E, Section 204.4 fromthe rooftop and
upper-floor elenment requirenments wth subtitle E, Section
204.1; under Subtitle E, Section 207.5 to allow the rear
wal | of the row building to extend farther than 10 feet
beyond the farthest rear wall and adjoi ning princi pal
residential building on an adjacent property; and under
Subtitle E, Section 5201 fromthe | ot occupancy
requi rements of Subtitle E, Section 210. 1.

Soit's for a newthird story with roof deck and a
three-story rear addition to an existing two-story
attached principal dwelling. It's located in the RF-1
Zone at 910 12th Street Northeast, Square 980, Lot 53.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

| f the applicant could hear me, if they could please
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I ntroduce thensel ves for the record.

MR, SULLIVAN:  Thank you, M. Chairman and Menbers of
the Board. Marty Sullivan with Sullivan and Barros.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. M. Sullivan, if you want
to wal k us through your client's application and why you
believe they're neeting the criteria to grant the relief
that is being requested, I'mgoing to put 15 m nutes on
the clock so I know where we are; and you can begin
whenever you'd |ike.

MR, SULLIVAN:  Thank you. |If we could have the
Power Poi nt | oaded, please. And with nme, also, is Patrick
Brian Jones, the project architect, if the Board has any
qguestions for him | was planning to go through the --

t hrough the presentation nyself; but he'd be available if
you have any questions, as well as the applicant M.
Pet er son.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. Thank you, M. Sullivan.

MR, SULLIVAN: Next slide, please. The address is
910 12th Street Northeast. The property is in the RF-1
Zone, and the applicants are proposing a construct a third
story and a three-story rear addition for which three
areas of relief are being requested; one, for |ot
occupancy to go to 69.9 percent; two, for architectural
element relief for altering the existing mansard; and,

three, for 10-foot Rule.
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Based on sone recent feedback from DOB, | don't think
we actually need that relief; but I'll -- what it is, is
the first floor is inset fromthe second floor. And we're
only 10 feet back or less fromthe second floor; so the
furthest rear wall, we're not nore than 10 feet past. But

just in the event that DOB would | ook at it and say, well,

you're 17 feet past the -- the first floor rear wall,
which is inset -- | -- 1 don't want themto cone back and
say that. | don't think they would just based on anot her

case that's comng up in a couple weeks where we've gotten
feedback on that issue, but we're asking for that relief
nonet hel ess.

Next slide, please. W have the support of the
O fice of Planning and DDOT. ANC 6A has voted unani nously
I n support; and we have nine letters of support from
nei ghbors, including both adjacent nei ghbors.

Next slide, please. There's the subject property.

Next slide, please. There's an overhead view of the
property.

Next slide. And there's a front view.

Next slide, please. The property is 910 12th, so you
see it all the way to the left here. Three doors to the
right -- the reason we're showing this photo -- shows a
third-floor addition that's a matter of right because it's

set back fromthe mansard; and the idea here was that
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the -- the applicant and the architect did not believe
that that was an attractive addition in the context, even
though it's a matter of right. And so that's the reason
we're here asking for architectural elenent relief.

Next slide, please. This is the rear of the
property. You see a |large addition two doors down, and
you get a sense of what's in the back alley here. And
t hen you can see on the property to the right where it's
Inset, that's a second-story addition which |ines up
wth -- with the rear wall of the applicants' building.
It's -- actually, there's, like, a seven-foot porch
underneath that second floor overhang.

Next slide, please. That's another view of the alley
and then the addition on the other side.

Next slide, please. And this is across the street.

Next slide, please. Here's the plan show ng the rear
addi ti on.

Next slide, please. Next slide, please. These are
fl oor plans.

Next slide. Next slide. And a roof plan.

Next slide, please. So here's the front elevation;
so, essentially, the nansard is being raised up inits
same configuration to be a story higher; and that mansard
Is, actually, just -- it's a faux mansard. It is,

actual ly, a parapet, as you can see fromthe section on
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the right of this.

Next slide, please. There's the rear elevation.

Next slide, please. Next slide, please. So granting
relief is in harnony wth the general purpose and intent
of the regulations and maps. The property will still be
used as a single-famly dwelling, although the applicant
I's considering converting it to two units with a
downstairs basenent apartnent; but that's permtted as a
matter of right because we're in the RF Zone.

And the granting of special exception will also not
tend to adversely affect the use of neighboring properties
as described below. Again, both adjacent neighbors are in
support, along wth seven others.

Next slide, please. The specific requirenments for
all three areas of relief are the sane. The addition wll
not unduly affect light and air available to nei ghboring
properties. The additions to rear wall, while it's
17-and-a-half feet past the first floor, it is only 10
feet past the second floor; and, as such, it doesn't
unduly inpact the light and the air on that property.

And, again, that neighbor is supportive of the
appl i cation.

There's no wi ndows proposed on either side there, so
there's no inpact on privacy. And the portion of the

addition that increases the footprint will not be seen
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fromthe front street, and it's also not out of character
W th existing rear additions as you saw fromthe photos
and from other accessory buildings as viewed fromthe

al | ey.

And regarding the mansard alteration, the proposa
keeps the mansard design, nerely noving it higher to gain
the permtted third story; and this proposal contrasts
with the matter of road construction that we showed you on
the building three doors to the right. And that addition
was a matter of right because it was set back three feet
fromthe mansard. This proposal, instead, works with the
exi sting mansard; and we believe it results in a better
overal | design, which, apparently, the Ofice of Planning
and ANC and nei ghbors all agreed with as well. And |
think that's it.

Next slide, please. Yeah. That's it. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Geat. Thank you,

M. Sullivan.

Before | turn to ny Board, can | hear fromthe Ofice
of Pl anni ng.

MR. BRADFORD: Good norning, Chairman H Il and
Menbers of the Board. For the record, ny name is Phillip
Bradf ord, Devel opnent Review Specialist with the Ofice of
Pl anni ng.

The O fice of Planning recommends approval of the
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request ed special exception relief, and we stand on the
record of the report in Exhibit 30.

Thank you, and |'m avail able for any questions.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Does the Board have any questions of the applicant or
the Ofice of Planning?

M. Young, is there anyone here wishing to speak?

MR YOUNG W do not.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. M. Sullivan, is there
anything you' d like to add at the end?

MR SULLIVAN: | do not. Thank you, M. Chair and

Board nenbers.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Thank you. I'mgoing to
cl ose the hearing and the record.

Ckay. | appreciate that the applicant has cone
forward with a -- a relatively clean application, in that

they' ve garnered the support of the Ofice of Planning,
that also of the ANC

| would agree with the Ofice of Planning' s report
concerning how they're neeting the criteria for us to
grant the relief that's being requested. | also would
note that | thought that the -- as the applicant said, the
rooftop architectural elenent being noved up, | think,
still is of a -- anice design. | would agree with

granting the relief for the rear wall whether or not they

eScribers, LLC
(800) 257-0885 Ext 7 | reporting@escribers.net | www.escribers.net



http://www.escribers.net

61

© 00 N o o bk~ w N P

N T T N I T N B e e e N R S N T
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o A W N Lk O

need -- you know, need it or not, it's something that -- |
think it'd be good for themto have available if DOB has
some issues wthit. I'mfine with that, as well as the

| ot occupancy.

M. Bl ake, do you have anything you'd like to add?

MR BLAKE: M. Chairman, | agree wth your analysis.
| believe the applicant really has presented a case that
meets the burden of proof to be granted the relief. |
al so agree wth the analysis that the Ofice of Planning
provided in its report, and | also give great weight to
Its recommendation. DDOT has al so no objection.

And | also note that the -- | gave great with to ANC
6A, which is in support, having stated no issues or
concerns. | would also point out the persons in support.
The adj acent nei ghbors have also chined in, in support of
t he application.

So | will be voting in favor of the application.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Thank you.

Vi ce-Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Thank you, M. Chairman. |'m
I n support of the application as presented. | amof the
viewthat relief fromthe 10-foot exception requirenent
woul d be required, so |I'm pleased that the applicant did
include it in the application. And so I'mgenerally in

support. Thank you.
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CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vice-Chair Mller?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Thank you, M. Chairnman. |
| agree with your comments, and |'m prepared to support
the -- and those of nmy colleagues, and |'mprepared to
support the application.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

All right. I'mgoing to make a notion to approve
Application No. 21196 as captioned and read by the
Secretary and ask for a second.

Ms. John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: The notion nade and seconded,
Madam Secretary, if you could take a roll call

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
notion to approve the application.

Chairman Hll?

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vice-Chair John?

VI CE- CHAl RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MR. BLAKE: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Conm ssioner MIler?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as
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four to zero to one to approve Application 21196 on the
motion made by Chairman H Il and seconded by Vice-Chair
John with Board Member Smth not participating.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. Thank you.

Madam Secretary, if you can call our next one when
you get an opportunity.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: The | ast case is Application No.
21197 of 10Q Northwest, LLC. This is a self-certified
application pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901.2 for a
speci al exception under Subtitle A Section 207.2 to all ow
an extension of regulations applicable to the portion of a
lot in a less-restrictive use zone and to the portion of
the lot in a nore-restrictive use zone; and pursuant to
Subtitle X, Section 1002 for an area variance from
Subtitle A Section 207.1 to allow an extension of the
zone boundary line at a lot that was not in single
ownership on May 12, 1958.

This is for a new four-story detached building for
use as an apartnent house with 29 unit with an art
gallery -- art gallery and community room space on a
flipped-zone lot. It's located in the MJ}4 and RF-1 Zones
at 10Q Street Northwest, Square 615, Lot 318.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. Thank you.

|f the applicant could hear me, if they could please

| ntroduce thenselves for the record.
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MR. DEBEAR. Yes. (Good afternoon, Chair -- or good
morni ng, Chair, Eric DeBear on behalf of the applicant,
10Q LLC.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: G eat. Thank you, M. DeBear.

M. DeBear, if you want to go ahead and wal k us through
your client's application and why you believe they're
meeting the criteria for us to grant the relief

requested -- | did notice, M. DeBear that in your
argument, you, kind of, point to previous -- previous
testinony and hearings that the BZA had heard concerning
this case. And | guess if you could just -- you know, you
can go ahead and refer to it; but the Board' s not bound by
any previous board' s decision.

And so if you want to go ahead and, again, make the
argunent that you were planning on making -- |'ve seen
your slide deck; so | think | wll go ahead and put 15
mnutes on the clock so | know where we are. And you can
begi n whenever you'd |ike.

MR. DEBEAR: Thank you, Chair. If M. Young could
bring up our presentation filed in the record, that would
be appreci at ed.

Next slide. Just to give the Board the whereabouts
of the property, this is located at -- by the corner of
Florida and North Capitol.

Next slide, please. This is a picture of the current
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exi sting condition of the property. This is a |ong-vacant
or underdevel oped parcel for many years. That one
structure on the property has been boarded up and unused,
otherw se, it is uninproved.

Next slide, please. Here's a picture of the zoning
map. This property is primarily located in the MJ4 Zone.
The reason we are here today and the crux of the two
relief requests is that little portion in the RF-1 Zone.

Next slide, please. Just to give a little background
on the applicant, the applicant is a subsidiary of M Casa
Inc.; and M Casa Inc. was the applicant in the prior case
that Chair ill-referenced. M Casa is a nonprofit
organi zation with 27 years in the district devel opi ng
affordable fam | y-sized housing.

They pronote affordable -- access to affordable
housi ng across the City preserving diverse nei ghborhoods
and preventing displacenent of |owincone residents.

Again, they do this primarily through both preservation of
exi sting affordable housing and buil ding new affordabl e
housi ng.

Next slide, please. A brief background on the
project history, in 2014 this property was put up through
a solicitation by DHCD to redevel op these | ong-vacant
lots. In 2018, so six years ago, DHCD awarded the
property to M Casa to redevelop. [In 2019, a year |ater
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M Casa through (indiscernible) O Connor's assistance,
applied for zoning relief, the sanme relief that's being
requested in this application.

ANC -- the ANC supported that case as they are this
case. Unfortunately, due to some challenges with the
conveyance from DHCD, as well as COVID- 19-rel ated del ays,
that BZA order in the prior case, 20095, was not vested.
So we are back with virtually the same project, as I|'|
wal k-through in a mnute, and the sane relief.

Next slide, please. The project nowis a four-story
building as it was back in the prior case wth, now, 29
all-affordable units. 75 percent of -- so three-quarters
wll be two- or three-bedroomfamly-sized units; and as
wi th nost DHCD solicitations, there bill be an
affordability covenant. So half of the units, at |east,
w Il be bel ow 50 percent AM.

The ground floor wll have a | obby, a comunity art
gal lery, and a comunity neeting space. There will be 11
par ki ng spaces, which neets the requirenent in zoning, and
a loading area to the rear of the building.

So just to give the Board a frane of reference, the
only material change fromthe case that was approved in
2019 is the renoval of what was previously the ground
floor retail space and replacement with nore residentia

units and the art gallery space. W are asking for the
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same zoning relief, except we no |onger need |oading. Due
to the reduction of retail space, loading is not required.
But, inportantly, the building envelope is the sane.

Next slide, please. W have unani nobus support,
again, fromANC 5E. The Ofice of Planning is
recommendi ng approval of both areas of relief, and DDOT
has no objection to the application.

Next slide, please. Here's an inmage of the ground
floor plan, which also functions as a site plan. You can
see the art gallery and community neeting space on the
right side along the alley and then units throughout the
remai nder of the property.

Next slide, please. And here's a typical floor plan,
t he second through fourth floor, which will, again, be --
wll just be units.

Next slide. Here's a rendering. These are, again,
fromthe exterior. |It's the same as what was previously
approved.

Next slide. Next slide. And here's just a diagram
kind of, show ng where the RF-1 Zone hits the property;
and I'Il talk a little bit about those factors in a
monent. But you can see that the 35-foot -- between the
30- and 40-foot line there would be the maxi numin the
RF-1 Zone. You also cannot have nultifamly, so it would

| npact the project significantly with that small portion
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of the property in the RF-1 Zone.

Next slide. So, again, the zoning relief -- there
are two areas of relief. They are related. Subtitle A
207.2 applies when a zone boundary line crosses a lot. W
are requesting a special exception relief to extend the
bul k and use provisions of the |ess-restrictive M;4 Zone
to the RF-1 Zone portion of the property.

Again, as | just mentioned, the RF-1 Zone does not
allowmultifamly use, would Iimt the height to the 35
feet and the | ot occupancy to 40 percent. The variance
relief is, actually, for a preanble of the application of
the special exception relief. That would require that all
of -- or I'msorry -- the |ot would have been in existence
as of 1958.

Here, while it's been subdivided in the |ast year or
two, previously it was, | believe, seven separate lots
that were all put forth in that same DHCD solicitation.

Next slide, please. |In terms of the special
exception relief, again, for the zone boundary Iline and
extending it, the M);4 to the RF-1, this does allow a
rel atively nodest increase in density in a nei ghborhood
that has seen a fairly significant -- actually, high
density devel opment, including directly across North
Capitol Street. A new project called the Florianis -- is

being finished there | believe. Right next to this
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project across the alley is the Truxton (ph), which is

al so an MJ4 so very nuch consistent with what's being
proposed here. And the relief also allows for new

fam |y-sized affordable units or, | should say, additional
fam | y-sized affordable units.

We do not believe the relief will adversely affect
t he nei ghboring property. The height and massing, again,
are consistent with the MJ4, which is only nodestly
i ncreased fromthe RF-1. There are nearby nultifamly
devel opnents; and even with the extension of that zone
boundary line, the project does step down in the RF-1
Zone. We also have a large rear yard that allows for an
adequate buffer along and across the alley.

Next slide, please. There are sone speci al
conditions that we believe are fairly clear that we've
met. | wanted to touch on Subsection C, which is -- which
Is sone of the factors |'ve discussed and no adverse
affect on the present character and future devel opment of
t he nei ghbor hood.

| think the nost inportant part is thisis a
| ong-vacant and underutilized assenbl age of bl ocks, and it
Is a major thoroughfare. \Wile part of the property is in
the RF-1 Zone, this property very nmuch fronts on Florida
Avenue and is directly nearby to North Capitol Street,

both of which are, again, major streets that can certainly
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support this nodest increase in density.

It is growng into an anmenity-rich nei ghborhood, so |
believe that this relief is beneficial in terns of adding
more units to that anmenity-rich nei ghborhood.

Next slide, please. Now, noving on to the variance
relief, which, again, is related to the special exception
relief; and that is a preanble.

You know, the Chair alluded to deciding this case on
Its own nerits; and | understand and respect that. |
woul d note that if no -- there had been no changes to the
property and if the Board found there to be excepti onal
and uni que conditions previously, that would strongly
I ndi cate that there are exceptionally unique conditions
NOW.

Again, | think the primary inpetus and -- for this
property being unique is that these lots, which are
again -- previously I nmentioned seven. |t was actually
eight lots. They were offered in one DHCD solicitation to
redevel op the property. M Casa now has a programmatic
need to adhere to that DHCD solicitation and, certainly,
in the benefit of the Gty to get this property
redevel oped.

As we discussed in -- five years ago, there is a
public service standard that allows the Board to consider

some of these programmatic needs related to the DHCD

eScribers, LLC
(800) 257-0885 Ext 7 | reporting@escribers.net | www.escribers.net



http://www.escribers.net

71

© 00 N o o bk~ w N P

N T T N I T N B e e e N R S N T
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o A W N Lk O

solicitation. Again, this is an all-affordable

devel opnment with famly units -- with famly-sized units.
Again, the property's also been |ong vacant and
underutilized, which is unique in this neighborhood. W
do have an (indiscernible) lot Iine on Florida that, as
"Il mention, certainly contributes to a practi cal
difficulty; and the property is bounded by alleys on two
sides separating it fromother MJ4 property.

Next slide, please. |In terms of practical
difficulties, as | nmentioned, there's no nultifamly use
in the RF-1 Zone; so without relief fromthis provision
and the ability to apply -- extend the MJ4 Zone, that
woul d significantly inpact that western side of the
project. You can see the ground floor plan there. There
Is a portion of the | obby beyond the dotted line, which is
where the property turns into the RF-1 Zone; so the | obby
woul d have to be noved to the west. And, obviously, there
woul d be a significant reduction in the nunber of units
permtted in that portion of the property. Again, the
RF-1 zone does not allow for nmultifamly.

Again, there would be inpacts to circulation and fire
access. Mich of the core would have to nove fromthe RF-1
Zone, which would really be an al nost, kind of, separate
project, into the MJ;4 where the multifamly would be

| ocated. This creates challenges. Again, the angled | ot

eScribers, LLC
(800) 257-0885 Ext 7 | reporting@escribers.net | www.escribers.net



http://www.escribers.net

72

© 00 N o o bk~ w N P

N T T N I T N B e e e N R S N T
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o A W N Lk O

| i ne makes the property a lot narrower toward the east; so
there's a lot fewer places where that |obby and stairwell,
whi ch is needed for fire access, could be |ocated.

And, of course, as | nentioned, if we were not
allowed to extend the MJ}4 Zone, we would not be able to
conply with the DHCD solicitation. This would create
substantial delays again in the project, and they woul d
probabl e have to put it back up for a new solicitation.

Next slide, please. For many of the reasons we've
di scussed, we do not believe the variance relief -- again,
because the property was not all one |ot as of 1958 --
woul d have any detrinment to the zone plan. It allows for
construction of the new affordable project that has been
long in line to be redeveloped. It increases the nunber
of famly-sized units on a major thoroughfare.

Next slide, please. And wth that, I wll close our
presentation-in-chief and would open it up to any
questions fromthe Board.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you, M. DeBear.

Before | turn to ny Board, can | hear fromthe Ofice
of Pl anni ng.

M5. THOVAS. Yes. Good norning, M. Chair and
Menbers of the board. Karen Thomas with the Ofice of
Pl anning, and we are in support of this application for

the reasons as stated by the applicant and as outlined in
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our report. W do believe that the -- with respect to the
variance relief being requested, that there's a
programmati c need to adhere to the district's solicitation
and award requirements for affordable housing on this |ot
and -- for an assenbled parcel. And the assenbl ed parcel
Is -- is acondition that they inherited fromthe DHCD.
And shoul d the parcels not remain as one solid unit, there
woul d be -- the applicant would not be able to neet the
requi rements that are specified for affordable housing on
this parcel.

So, with that, we believe that there would be no
substantial detriment To the public good since the
affordabl e housing is the public good here in such a
hi gh-cost | and value area. And in support of that, we do
bel i eve that the special exception relief standards woul d
be met should a variance relief be approved. So we are in
support, and we rest on the record of the rest of the rest
of our report. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Thank you, Ms. Thomas.

Does the Board have any questions for the applicant
and/ or the Ofice of Planning?

Ms. John?

MR YOUNG You're on --

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: You're on nute, M. John.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Thank you. So has --
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question is for the applicant, has DHCD al ready conveyed
the property to M Casa?

MR. DEBEAR: | do not know the answer to that, Board
Menmber John. | believe so; but |I know that as of the
| ast -- the last case, they had not, obviously, because
they had challenges in getting that conveyance finalized
before they could go to building permt, which is why they
didn't vest the order. | do not know if they currently
own the property or not. | believe so because | believe
t hey subdivided the property; but, you know, | don't know
for sure.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  So in ternms of the burden of
proof, the variance should be anal yzed with respect to the

hardship to DHCD as the owner of the property; right?

MR DEBEAR: | -- I'mnot sure. | -- | nean, it's
the hardship -- it's related to the -- | nean, it could be
the contract purchaser. | mean, that's basically what 10Q

and M Casa are; so it's both. But it would be a hardship
for DHCD, as well, because if the relief isn't granted,
then M Casa won't be able to carry through on this
project that has now been in the solicitation process for
ten years. So DHCD woul d have to go back to the draw ng
board and re-solicit the -- the devel opnent of this |ot.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  (kay. And so you woul d apply

the rel axed standard to that burden of proof?
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MR. DEBEAR: Correct, yes. And we -- we certainly
bel i eve when it comes to an all-affordabl e devel opnent
that's gone through DHCD s solicitation process and given,
kind of, the overall policy push for affordable projects
i n highly anmenitized nei ghborhoods, we do think that that
woul d apply here. And it would allow the Board to
consider, as part of the variance test, those programmtic
needs related to the DHCD solicitation that m ght not
otherw se apply in -- in other cases.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  CGkay. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Ms. Thomas, you seemto be nodding your head. Do you
know if DHCD -- they still have the property; right?

M5. LEWS: Yes. They just -- | -- 1 believe so.

But --

MR. DEBEAR. They're listed as the owner on the
zoni ng map, SO --

M5. THOVAS: Yeabh.

MR. DEBEAR. -- | do know that the property was
subdi vi ded; so, you know, clearly they've authorized M
Casa to begin the devel opnent process potentially. But I
don't know if the conveyance has occurred.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yeah. There's an
aut hori zation to M Casa.

MR. DEBEAR. They have a -- they have a disposition
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agreement with DHCD, so that neans it's, essentially, a
purchase -- a sale agreenent. So | don't think the
property has officially been conveyed, but it is inmnent.

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  So | -- for the Board's
purposes, right, there is an authorization fromDHCD to M
Casa; so | wll accept your -- your description of the
hardship to DHCD because it is the record owner of the
property. So I'mfine with that

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. M. Blake, you seemto have

your hand up.

MR. BLAKE: No. M. John addressed the issue. | had
a concern with -- | -- | agree that we approach it from
the district perspective. It's nore appropriate than M
Casa.

And | know we -- we don't want to reference the prior

case; but | do notice that -- M. DeBear, you did not
request this relief in that case. Is that -- was that an
oversight or --

MR. DEBEAR: | did not request -- excuse nme?

MR. BLAKE: The -- the -- that the rule on the
ownership, the -- the existent lot in the |ast variance
case when you were asking for a |oading variance.

MR. DEBEAR: W did -- we -- we renoved that. W
don't need the | oading anynore, no.

MR- BLAKE: | -- | understand what you're saying.
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MR. DEBEAR:  Yeah.

MR BLAKE: | -- | noticed you did not request the
variance relief you're asking for now. The conditions
were, essentially, the same; but you did not request that
vari ance; correct?

MR. DEBEAR: For the loading or for the -- this
preanbl e?

MR. BLAKE: Preanble.

MR. DEBEAR: W -- we requested that relief, and it
was granted.

MR, BLAKE: Got it. It wasn't updated. GCkay. Thank

you.

MR DEBEAR:  Yep.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Vice-Chair MIler, do you have any
questi ons?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Thank you, M. Chairman; and
t hank you, M. DeBear, on behalf of M Casa for bringing
this case forward to facilitate this project of 29
all-affordable units in one of the long -- |ong-vacant and

underutilized lot in an anenity-rich nei ghborhood as

you -- as you testified.
| believe the criteria has -- well, I'll get to that
in our deliberations; but I -- | appreciate you bringing

it forward. Thank you.
CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you, M. Mller.

eScribers, LLC
(800) 257-0885 Ext 7 | reporting@escribers.net | www.escribers.net



http://www.escribers.net

78

© 00 N o o bk~ w N P

N T T N I T N B e e e N R S N T
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o A W N Lk O

M. Young, is there anyone here wi shing to speak?

MR, YOUNG Just the ANC Comm ssioner.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  On, | didn't see the ANC
Conmi ssi oner here.

Ch, Comm ssioner, you're busy today.

MS. LEWS: Yes.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Al right. Conmm ssioner Lewis, do
you want to introduce yourself for the record, please.

M5S. LEWS: Yes. M nane is Karla Lewis. |'mthe --
t he Chairperson for ANC 5D, and |'m al so the Conm ssi oner
for ANC 5D02, and that's where this property resides.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Okay. Well, Chairperson Lew s,
woul d you |like to give us any testinony?

MS. LEWS: Sure. This property has been vacant and
an eyesore to the comunity for over a decade now. W
want nothing nore than to have sone affordabl e housing
units in the place of the vacant property.

It was probably maybe a year, maxi numtwo years ago
that one of the buildings that's on this property was
bei ng used by honel ess people; and they brought a gril
inside of it and caused a fire. And surroundi ng nei ghbors
were not very happy about this fact.

So the -- the devel opnent of the property is a
wel cone -- wel cone, you know, for -- the entire comunity

wel cones the devel opnent of the property.
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W al so probably would be nore than happy, if we are
given the opportunity, to use their neeting space that was
mentioned with -- on this property because we do -- you
know, once we start having our hybrid neetings or
| n-person neetings, it would be a welcone to the community
to be able to neet sonepl ace near by.

And al t hough the community wanted a retail space,
whi ch was recomended back in 2019, we think that having
more affordable housing is -- is -- is acceptable. So ANC
5E did approve this application for the -- to have the
29 -- what is it -- the 29-unit building in the comunity;
and we can't wait for themto start building and breaking
ground.

CHAI RPERSON HILL: Al right, Chairperson Lews --

MS. LEWS: NMmhm

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: -- thanks again for being with us,
and thank you for -- you've been with us a fewtinme, so
nice to see you again

MS. LEWS: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Let's see. Does anybody have any
questions for the Chairperson? Al right.

M. DeBear, do you have anything to add at the end?

MR. DEBEAR: | do not. Thank you to the Board for
Its tinme today.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Ckay. Geat. I'mgoing to go
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ahead and cl ose the hearing and the record.

Ckay. | appreciate the -- the applicant putting
forward their argument. | think that they've clearly
I ndicated to nme how they're neeting the variance criteria
and then, also, that of the extension of the lot fromthe
| ess-restrictive to -- I"'msorry -- fromnore-restrictive
to less-restrictive use.

And | al so appreciate the announcenent the O fice of
Pl anni ng has put forward, wherein it is easier to
understand -- not easier -- it -- it -- it -- it seconds
the DHCD issue as to how this is an exceptional situation
resulting in a practical difficulty.

| would be viewing this, again, as a DHCD property as
to why they're meeting the criteria to grant the variance;

and | appreciate, again, the project. And |I'msure

Comm ssioner MIler is one who's already -- who's focused
on this issue quite -- nore because of the Zoning
Conmi ssion, his -- his ability as the Vice-President of

t he Zoning Comm ssion wll have some things to say as
well. But I"'mgoing to be voting in favor of this
appl i cation.

M. Bl ake?

MR. BLAKE: Thanks, Chair. | agree with your
anal ysis, and | give great weight to the Ofice of

Planning's report. |'ll be in support of the application
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CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vi ce- Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  I'min support of the
application for the reasons you stated and the testinony
of fered by the applicant.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Thank you.

Vice-Chair Mller?

COM SSI ONER M LLER:  Yes. | -- 1, too, concur with
your -- your conmments, M. Chairman, that the criteria for
the variance for a very worthwhile project, that
(indi scernible) below 80 percent at nmeeting famly incone
and then there -- also, the |arge bedroons, the two to
t hree bedroons; and the park, alley, and comunity neeting
space seens |ike a good anenity too.

But the criteria had been nmet in this case, and |'m
pl eased to support it today.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Geat. Thank you.

All right. 1'mgoing to nake a notion then to
approve Application No. 21197 as captioned and read by the
Secretary and ask for a second.

Ms. John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: Mbtion nade and seconded.

Madam Secretary, take a roll call.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
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notion to approve the application.

Chairman Hi |l ?

CHAI RPERSON HI LL:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vi ce-Chair John?

VI CE- CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MR. BLAKE: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Conmmi ssioner MIler?

COW SSI ONER M LLER  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as
four to zero to one to approve Application 21197 on the
noti on made by Chairman H Il and seconded by Vice-Chair
John with Board Menber Smith not participating.

CHAI RPERSON HI LL: kay. Geat. Thank you.

Madam Secretary, do we have anything before the
Boar d?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Nope. That's it.

CHAI RPERSON HILL: Al right. | appreciate all of
your -- all the help today, and thank you for being with
us. And we are adjourned.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter was

adj our ned.)
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CERTI FI CATI ON
This is to certify that the foregoing transcript in the
matter of Public Hearing before DCBZA on Novenber 20,
2024, via Wbex vi deoconference was duly recorded and
accurately transcri bed under ny direction; further, that
said transcript is a true and accurate record of the

pr oceedi ngs.

/ s/ Jennifer A. Zi nbauer
Jenni fer A. Zi nbauer
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